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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 6 4 5
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

X

ANDIN INTERNATIONAL INC., :
Plaintiff, Civil Action No.
V. : COMPLAINT

Case 1:07-cv-03645-JGK - Document 1 Filed 05/08/2007 ~ ;ﬁ@pe 1 of 30
WHITEHALL JEWELLERS, INC. and : S T

KRISTALL, INC., :  (Jury Demandad) G
' : ECF CASE 7 |

Defendants. :

X

Plaintiff Andin International inc., by its attorneys, for its Complaint against

Defendant Whitehall Jewellers, Inc. and Defendant Kristall, Inc., alleges as follows:
SUMMARY AND PURPOSE OF THIS SUIT

1. The purpose of this lawsuit is to seek damages and injunctive relief
to stop Defendant Whitehal! Jewellers, Inc. (“Whitehall”) and Defendant Kristall, Inc.
(“Kristall") (collectively “Defendants”) from "knocking off” Plaintiff Andin International
Inc.'s (*Andin”) DUO collection line of diamond and other gemstone jewelry and unfairly
competing with Andin. This has been manifested by Defendants in selecting the term
“Duets” to identify a competing and infringing line of jewelry and by copying jewelry
within this line that is protected by Andin’s copyright and trade dress. Unless
Defendants are enjoined from further trademark, copyright and trade dress infringement

and unfair competition, Andin will suffer substantial ongoing and irreparable harm.



JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This complaint alleges causes of action for infringement of
trademark, trade dress, copyright and for unfair competition, under the Copyright and
Trademark Laws, 17 U.S.C. §101 et seq. and 15 U.S.C. § et seq.

3. ThisCowthssaubiecimatterutisdician in this atiRnoRyssANt tage 2 of 30
28 U.S.C. §§1331 and 1367(a).

4 Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§
1391(b}-(c) and 1400(a).

THE PARTIES

5. Andin is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of New York, having an office and place of business at 609 Greenwich Street,
New York, New York 10014.

6. Andin is a leading resource of original items of jewelry, including
rings and like items.

7. Upon information and belief, Whitehall is a Delaware corporation
with its headquarters located at 125 South Wacker Drive, Chicago, lllinois 60606.

8. Upon information and belief, Kristall is a Nevada corporation having
an office and place of business at 611 West 6" Street, Los Angeles, California 90017.

9. Upon information and belief, Whitehall transacts business within
this district, has committed tortious acts within this district and defendant is otherwise
within the jurisdiction of this Court.

10.  Upon information and belief, Kristall transacts business within this
district, has committed tortious acts within this district and defendant is otherwise within

the jurisdiction of this Court.



11.  Upon information and belief, Whitehall operates various jewelry
stores, including jewelry stores in New York, selling jeweiry to members of the general
public.
12.  Upon information and belief, Kristall is a manufacturer and/or
distributor of merchatgise, ingiugdingIewsinsitemssunpling ta Whitbalbanskpoef,  page 3 of 30
retailers, and has engaged in conduct in New York and elsewhere which infringes on
Andin’s intellectual property rights, as set forth hereinafter.

FACTS COMMON TO ALL COUNTS

Andin’s DUQ Collection

13. The DUO collection is the brainchild and exclusive creation of Ofer
Azrielant, CEO of Andin, who conceived and developed on behalf of Andin the concept
of associating two diamonds or other gemstones as representing the loving relationship
between two individuals. This line consists of diamond jewelry or jewelry of other
gemstones, including rings, pendants, earrings and bracelets in which the two stones
are set in precious metal in a contemporary or classic design. The DUO collection line
of jewelry was designed to capture the essence of romance, by emphasizing the
relationship of the two diamonds or other gemstones in the design.

14.  Andin began marketing its DUO collection of jeweliry on
Jewelry.com, a weli-known and frequently visited online jewelry information resource for
consumers, and started selling this line in major retail stores nationwide in the Fall of
2006.

15.  Andin’s major launch of the DUO coliection was an immediate
success and was met with great excitement and fanfare by jewelry executives of major

retail chains and the DUOQ collection received extensive media attention, which has
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continued. By way of example, a celebration of the DUO collection was held at The
New York Public Library on February 5, 2007. The attendees present at this
newsworthy and highly publicized festivity, hosted by the celebrity-chef Daniel Boulud,
included over 150 jewelry industry ViPs and media, including Beryl Raff, J.C. Penney’s
executive vice presidentsandanasnyesbasofiiners o seaisriawelry pllal®s/08/2007  Page 4 of 30

16. The creation of Andin’s DUO collection has also been touted by
the jewelry industry. Stories about the DUO coliection have appeared in several jewelry
industry publications including National Jeweler, dated February 13, 2007, JCK,
November 2006 issue and JQ, September/October 2006 issue, all of which are widely
circulated publications in the jewelry industry.

17.  This publicity has engendered significant sales success, with the
DUO line being currently sold in numerous mass merchandisers and jewelry chains,
including J.C. Penney’s, Macy's and Zales.
Andin's “DUO” Trademarks

18.  In connection with the marketing, promotion and sale of the DUO
collection line of jewelry, Andin adopted and has used the mark DUO, as well as its
English equivalent TWO, and the slogans “It takes two....," “Two is the essence of
romance...” and “The Power of two...” (“Andin’s Trademarks”). Essentially, Andin’s
Trademarks serve to impart the quintessential bond or romantic love existing in a
couple relationship.

19.  Andin's Trademarks have appeared extensively in advertising for
the DUO collection line of jewelry. By way of example, Andin's DUQ collection jewelry

line has been advertised in the February issue of Glamour.



The DUETTO Trademark

20. Andin is a licensee under U.S. Registration No. 2,662,279 for the
mark DUETTO. Under this license, Andin has the right to use the marks DUETTO,
DUET and DUETS on jewelry in the U.S. and Andin has been granted the right to
enforce and undertakesalt nepgssayactions gaimsttheninftingememi @biesg7  Page 5 of 30
DUETTO, as well as against infringement of DUET and DUETS, which are the English
translations of DUETTO.

Andin’s DUO Copyrights

21.  Andin is the exclusive owner of Copyright Registrations covering
jewelry items in its DUQ collection, identified as Andin’s Styles Z1990, Z1936 and
Z2033 (coliectively “the DUQO Copyrighted Works"). The DUO Copyrighted Works are
the subject of U.S. Copyright Registration Nos. VA 1-375-259 (Z21990), VA 1-384-883
(Z1936) and VA 1-370-196 (Z2093). Copies of the DUO Copyrighted Works are
annexed hereto as Exhibit A and the issued certificates of registration for the DUO
Copyrighted Works are attached as Exhibit B.

Andin’s DUQ Collection Trade Dress

22.  As aresult of the media attention, promotion and significant sales
success, Andin’s DUO collection, namely its line of diamond and other gemstone
jewelry, including rings, pendants, earrings and bracelets in which the stones are set in
precious metal and featuring two stones in a contemporary or classic design to signify
the loving relation between two individuals, have become known to the jewelry trade
and consumer purchasers as being associated with Andin. These jeweiry items have

thus achieved a distinctive and non-functional trade dress.



Defendants’ Infringement

23. Recently, Andin determined that Defendants have embarked on a
calculated plan and scheme to usurp for themselves the good will enjoyed by Andin
attributable to Andin's DUO diamond jewelry collection. This scheme has manifested
itself in the introductionf YWiitehaliscRirmerd Digfs faligction (hsyIBEIBEIR8PHepage 6 of 30
Collection”). Copies of pages from Whitehall’s print and on-line catalogue showing this
collection are annexed hereto as Exhibit C.

24. The Infringing Duets Collection includes numerous items having
jewelry designs in which gemstones are set in precious metal in a contemporary or
classic design. At least some of these items have been supplied to Whitehall by
Kristall. As set forth hereinafter, the Infringing Duets Collection infringes on Andin's
copyright, trademark and trade dress rights identified above, and constitutes unfair
competition.

25.  Specifically, the ring shown as Style A/ltem 20 in Whitehall's
catalogue pages is virtually identical to Andin’s styles 22093 and 21980 rings, and the
ring shown as Style D/ltem 21 on these pages is virtually identical to Andin’s style
Z1936 ring.

26. Whitehall's use of the term “Duets” as a trademark, apparently with
the consent and authorization of Kristall, to market, promote and sell its jewelry designs,
along with such phrase as “Two Hearts, Always Together” and “A Meaning Only the
Two of You will Share,” is likely to cause confusion, mistake and deceit. Members of
the trade and the purchasing public will incorrectly believe that the Infringing Duets

Collection is endorsed, sponsored or connected with Andin.



27.  Whitehall's use of “Duets” is also likely to cause confusion, mistake
and deceit with respect to the registered DUETTO trademark. Members of the trade
and the purchasing public will incorrectly believe that the Infringing Duets Collection is
endorsed, sponsored or connected with Andin and/or with Argenterie Vicentine S.r.1,,
the owner of this registgred; mark, abABHER CB8Riment 1 Filed 05/08/2007  Page 7 of 30

28. Whitehall's selection of jewelry itemns, upon information and belief
supplied by Kristall, having two diamonds or other gemstones, such as, for example,
Style B/ltem 19, Style C/ltem 18, and Styie E/ltem 17 on the catalogue pages (which
items are either virtually identical to or substantially similar with jewelry sold by Andin in
its DUO collection line), is likely to cause confusion, mistake and deceit. Members of
the trade and the purchasing public will incorrectly believe that the Infringing Duets
Collection is endorsed, sponsored or connected with Andin.

26.  Andin has advised Defendants of their infringing activities as set
forth herein, but despite such notice, Defendants have continued with their
infringement. Accordingly, Defendants’ conduct is wilful and wanton.

COUNT |
[COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT]

30. This cause of action arises under the Copyright Laws of the United
States, Title 17 United States Code.

31. Andin repeats and realleges the allegations of paragraphs 1-29
hereof as if fully set forth herein.

32. In 20086, Andin created original designs for rings, identified as its

Style Z1990, Style Z2093 and Style Z1936.



33. These rings consist of material which is wholly original and is
copyrightable subject matter under the Copyright Laws of the United States, 17 U.S.C.
Sec. 101, et seq.

34. Andin has duly complied with the provisions of the Copyright Laws
of the United States and basoyecyreddighticand Royieassinand 1988184888a%Andpage 8 of 30
has duly requested from the Register of Copyrights Certificates of Registration
pertaining to said rings, identified as VA 1-370-196, VA 1-375-259 and VA 1-384-893.
These copyrighted works and the certificates therefor and shown in Exhibits A and B.

35. Defendants, having full knowledge of the copyright rights of Andin
as alleged herein, have infringed the aforesaid copyrights by manufacturing, publishing,
displaying, vending, distributing, selling, promoting and/or advertising rings, the designs
of which contains substantial material copied from said copyrighted works. These rings
are shown as Style A/ltem 20 and as Styie D/item 21 in Whitehall’s catalogue pages,
Exhibit C hereto.

36.  All of the activities of Defendants are in violation of the rights of
Andin under 17 U.S5.C. §101 et seq.

37.  All of the acts of Defendants as set forth herein, are without
permission, license or consent of Andin, and are irreparably damaging Andin. Andin
has been damaged by the acts of Defendants in an amount as yet unknown, but if such
activities go unabated, the damage to Andin and its DUO collection line may well

exceed $1,000,000.



COUNT II
[FALSE DESIGNATIONS OF ORIGIN]

38. This cause of action arises under the Trademark Laws of the
United States, Title 15, United States Code.

39. Andin repeats and realleges the allegations of paragraphs 1-29
hereof as if fully set f(ggﬁehé:rgi?r;cv—OBMS—JGK Document1l  Filed 05/08/2007 Page 9 of 30

40. As set forth herein, Andin adapted and has extensively used
Andin's Trademarks, including the trademark DUO to identify items of jewelry. As the
result of sales success and promotion, purchasers have come to identify the DUO
trademark as associated with Andin. The DUO trademark is distinctive and has
become distinctive of jewelry items associated with Andin.

41. Defendants, in selling, promoting and marketing jewelry items,
identified by the term “Duets”, are likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception in the
trade and with the purchasing public as to the source or origin or sponsorship of said
items and/or are likely to cause purchasers to incorrectly believe that Defendants’ items
of jewelry originate with, are endorsed by, or are otherwise associated with Andin.

42. The aforesaid activities of Defendants in selling, promoting and
marketing jewelry items in commerce constitutes false descriptions, false
representations, and false designations of origin, in violation of Section 43(a) of the
Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).

43. By reason of the acts of Defendants as alleged herein, Andin has,
and will, suffer irreparable damage to its reputation and a loss of sales and profits which

Andin would have made but for said acts of Defendants.



44. By reason of the acts of Defendants as alleged herein, Defendants
have been unjustly enriched and Andin is entitled to an accounting of Defendants’

profits.

45.  All of the acts of Defendants as set forth herein, are without
permission, license er.conseyit of. Agin; aedare HERARRY AaMRANIRANGH RN page 10 of 30
has been damaged by the acts of Defendants in an amount as yet unknown, but if such
activities go unabated, the damage to Andin and its DUO collection line may well
exceed $1,000,000.

COUNT Il
[INFRINGEMENT OF REGISTERED TRADEMARK]

46. This cause of action arises under the Trademark Laws of the
United States, Title 15, United States Code.

47. Andin repeats and realleges the allegations of paragraphs 1-29
hereof as if fully set forth herein.

48.  As set forth herein, Andin has the right to enforce and take all
necessary action to against infringement of the mark DUETTO, which is the subject of
Registration No. 2,662,279 for rings and other products in International Class 14.

48. Defendants, in selling, promoting and marketing jeweiry items,
identified by the term “Duets”, have infringed the mark DUETTO and the registration
thereof, in violation of Section 32 of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114.

50. By reason of the acts of Defendants as alleged herein, Andin has,
and will, suffer irreparable damage to its reputation and a loss of sales and profits which

Andin would have made but for said acts of Defendants.
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51. By reason of the acts of Defendants as alleged herein, Defendants
have been unjustly enriched and Andin is entitled to an accounting of Defendants’
profits.
52.  All of the acts of Defendants as set forth herein, are without
permission, license erpnsent.of Andins andiare iTeparably famaging 5B ARAIN page 11 of 30
has been damaged by the acts of Defendants in an amount as yet unknown, but if such
activities go unabated, the damage to Andin and its DUO collection line may well
exceed $1,000,000.

COUNT IV
[TRADE DRESS INFRINGEMENT]

53. This cause of action arises under the Trademark Laws of the
United States, Title 15, United States Code.

54.  Andin repeats and realleges the allegations of paragraphs 1-29
hereof as if fully set forth herein.

55. As set forth herein, Andin has distinctive, nonfunctional and
protectable rights in a trade dress, namely its line of diamond or other gemstone
jeweiry, including rings, pendants, earrings and bracelets in which the stones are set in
precious metal and featuring two gemstones along with a marketing program to
emphasize (by trademark or otherwise) that the gemstones signify the loving
relationship between two individuals, which has become known to purchasers as being
associated with Andin.

56. Whitehall's selection of jewelry items, upon information and belief
supplied by Kristall, having two diamonds juxtaposed adjacent one another or

complementary with one another, such as, for example, Style B/ltem 19, Style C/item
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18, and Style E/ltem 17 on the catalogue pages (Exhibit C), which items are
substantially identical to iike items previously sold by Andin in its DUO collection line, is
likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception in the trade and with the purchasing
public as to the source or origin or sponsorship of said items and/or are likely to cause
purchasers to incorrestiycbpiigne el Y¥bitRbRI's femaRbigwelry efidngiiosiBb@e Page 12 of 30
endorsed by, or are otherwise associated with Andin.

57. The aforesaid activities of Defendants in selling, promoting and
marketing jewelry items in commerce constitute false descriptions, false
representations, and false designations of origin, in violation of Section 43(a) of the
Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).

58. By reason of the acts of Defendants as alleged herein, Andin has,
and will, suffer irreparable damage to its reputation and a loss of sales and profits which
Andin would have made but for said acts of Defendants.

59. By reason of the acts of Defendants as alleged herein, Defendants
have been unjustly enriched and Andin is entitled to an accounting of Defendants’
profits.

60.  All of the acts of Defendants as set forth herein, are without
permission, license or consent of Andin, and are irreparably damaging Andin. Andin
has been damaged by the acts of Defendants in an amount as yet unknown, but if such
activities go unabated, the damage to Andin and its DUO collection line may well

exceed $1,000,000.
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COUNT V
[COMMON LAW UNFAIR COMPETITION]

61. This cause of action arises under the New York common law of
unfair competition.

62. Andin repeats and realleges the allegations of paragraphs 1 - 29

Case 1.07-cv-03645-JGK  Document1l  Filed 05/08/2007 Page 13 of 30
hereof as if fully set forth herein.

63. Defendants have engaged in a course of unfair competition by
using the term “Duets,” selling and promoting jeweiry with two gemstones using a
marketing program to emphasize (by trademark or otherwise) that the gemstones
signify the loving relationship between two individuals and by copying Andin’s jewelry
designs, including designs protected by both copyright and trade dress.

64. Upon information and belief, the acts alleged herein are a
specifically oriented predatory business practice undertaken by Defendants, the
dominant purpose and effect of which is to pass off and palm off their line of diamond
jewelry as originating with Andin and to confuse buyers as to the source or origin of
such goods, in violation of the common law of New York.

85. By reason of the acts of Defendants as alleged herein, Andin has,
and will, suffer irreparable damage to its reputation and a loss of sales and profits which
Andin would have made but for said acts of Defendants.

66. By reason of the acts of Defendants as alleged herein, Defendants
have been unjustly enriched and Andin is entitled to an accounting of Defendants’ ‘
profits.

67. Al of the acts of Defendants as set forth herein, are without

permission, license or consent of Andin, and are irreparably damaging Andin. Andin
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has been damaged by the acts of Defendants in an amount as yet unknown, but if such
activities go unabated, the damage to Andin and its DUO collection line may well
exceed $1,000,000.
WHEREFORE, Andin demands:
Case 1:.07-cv-03645-JGK  Document1l  Filed 05/08/2007 Page 14 of 30
A That Defendants, their agents, servants, related companies, and all
parties in privity with them, or any of them, be enjoined preliminarily and permanently
from infringing the trademark, trade dress and copyright rights of Andin, or from
otherwise unfairly competing with Andin, by

(a) infringing the trademark rights of Andin by using the term “Duets’ or any term
substantially similar to the trademarks DUO and DUETTO as would be likely to cause
confusion, mistake or deceive,

(b) infringing the copyright rights of Andin by manufacturing, -illustrating,
publishing, displaying, vending, distributing, offering to sell, selling, shipping, delivering,
promoting, using or advertising any copies of works which are the subject of Andin's
copyright registrations, including but not limited to an injunction against Whitehall
dealing in the rings are shown as Style A/ltem 20 and as Style D/lItem 21 in Whitehall's
catalogue pages, Exhibit C hereto, or any other items incorporating the infringing
designs,

(c) infringing the trade dress rights of Andin by selling, marketing and promoting
the rings are shown as Style B/ltem 19, Style C/ltem 18, and Style E/ltem 17 in |
Whitehall's catalogue pages, Exhibit C hereto, or any other items substantially similar

thereto or by selling any other jewelry having two gemstones along with a marketing
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program to emphasize (by trademark or otherwise) that the gemstones signify the loving
relationship between two individuals, and

(d) from otherwise unfairly competing with Andin by using Andin’s trademarks,
copyrights and/or trade dress.

B.  ThatDefendanishe regyiredip deliver yp fordestosiIAbr  Page 15 of 30
infringing copies of Andin's items in Defendants’ possession or under of the control of
Defendants, and to deliver up for destruction all material implementing such infringing
works.

C. That Defendants be required to pay Andin such damages as Andin
sustained in consequence of Defendants’ infringement of Andin’s rights and fo account
for all gains, profits and advantages derived by Defendants from said infringement, and
that such award for damages be trebled due to willful and wanton nature thereof.

D. That Defendants pay to Andin its costs of this action, and Andin's
reasonable attorneys' fees, as the Court may allow.

E. That Andin be granted such other and further relief as the Court
may deem just.

GOTTLIEB, RACKMAN & REISMAN, P.C.
Attorneys for Plaintiff
270 Madison Avenue

New York, New York 10016-0601
(212) 6843900

By: W
George Gottlieb (GG 5761)
Barry A. Cooper (BC 9298)
Yuval H. Marcus (YM 5348)

Dated: New York, New York
May 8, 2007
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